STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Statement of the Case

The present controversy reaches this Court pursuant to Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv). SAMUEL G. CROSBY and MILLER, CROSBY & MILLER, P.A. ("CROSBY") filed a Notice to Invoke Discretionary Jurisdiction on August 15, 1996 (A. 1)¹, following the Second District Court of Appeal's Order Reversing Final Summary Judgment entered in favor of CROSBY on July 17, 1996. (A. 2)

Statement of the Facts

On June 12, 1986, PATRICIA JONES was in an automobile accident with Mrs. Judith Camus (hereafter "Camus"), an employee of Gulf Coast Newspapers, Inc. (hereafter "Gulf Coast"). In 1987, LOGAN and PATRICIA JONES (hereinafter "JONES") sought the services of CROSBY to represent them in a personal injury action. CROSBY filed suit on behalf of JONES against Camus and her husband (the vehicle owners), Gulf Coast, and George House, an uninsured motorist. JONES sued Gulf Coast, Camus' employer, since JONES believed Camus was acting within the scope of her employment when the accident occurred.

In 1990, during the course of mediation, JONES reached a settlement with Camus' insurer, State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Co. (hereafter "State Farm"), who tendered policy limits, in exchange for a release and settlement of JONES' claims against Mr. & Mrs. Camus,

¹The Order being appealed and other critical documents and pleadings on record before the court below are attached pursuant to Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.220 as an Appendix and are designated (A. appendix document number).

individually. The parties executed a Joint Motion for Dismissal with Prejudice (hereafter the "Joint Motion for Dismissal").

After Camus' dismissal, Gulf Coast moved for summary judgment arguing the release and dismissal of Camus released her employer, as well. The trial court granted Gulf Coast's motion and entered final judgment in its favor. CROSBY timely appealed the trial court's ruling, and on January 24, 1992, the Second District Court of Appeal affirmed in Jones v. Gulf Coast Newspapers. Inc., 595 So. 2d 90 (Fla. 2d DCA), rev. denied, 602 So. 2d 942 (Fla. 1992) ("Jones I") (A. 3).

On July 18, 1994, JONES filed a Complaint for legal malpractice against CROSBY alleging CROSBY's filing of the Joint Motion for Dismissal was negligent. During the suit's pendency, this Court handed down J.F.K. Medical Center v. Price, 647 So. 2d 833 (Fla. 1994). (A. 4) Based on JFK, CROSBY filed a Motion for Summary Judgment on January 18, 1995, as to JONES' malpractice action. (A. 5) The Honorable Oliver Green heard CROSBY's Motion for Summary Judgment on March 13, 1995, and granted it on March 31, 1995. (A. 6) JONES' Notice of Appeal followed on April 26, 1995. After the filing of briefs and oral argument, the Second District Court of Appeal reversed the summary judgment in favor of CROSBY on July 17, 1996 ("Jones II") (A. 2), giving rise to a conflict between this Court and the Second District on two levels.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

This Court has discretionary jurisdiction to review a decision of a district court of appeal which conflicts with the Court's decision(s) on a matter of law. In reversing the summary judgment granted in favor of CROSBY, the Second District expressly and directly disregarded this Court's holding in <u>J.F.K. Medical Center. Inc. v. Price</u>, 647 So. 2d 833 (Fla. 1994). Moreover, to get to this stage in the litigation, the Second District had to disregard the Court's decision in Sun First National Bank of Melbourne v. Batchelor, 321 So. 2d 73 (Fla. 1977).

A dismissal with prejudice is not an adjudication on the merits and never has been in this State until the Second District held it to be in <u>Jones v. Gulf Coast Newspapers</u>, <u>Inc.</u>, 595 So. 2d 90 (Fla. 2d DCA), <u>rev. denied</u>, 602 So. 2d 942 (Fla. 1992). This decision, however, came <u>one</u> and a half years after the dismissal filed by <u>CROSBY</u>. As a result of that aberrant ruling, CROSBY was sued for malpractice. After this Court's decision in <u>J.F.K.</u>, the Second District had an opportunity to correct its previous error by affirming the trial court's summary judgment in CROSBY's favor based on <u>J.F.K.</u>. Nevertheless, the Second District refused to do so and again rejected this Court's opinion. Not once but twice the Second District expressly and directly conflicted with this Court, on the impact of a release/dismissal of the active tortfeasor on the vicariously liable party.

Although it is the Second District that has chosen to ignore the laws of this State as decreed by this Court, CROSBY is the one that will suffer. CROSBY, in representing JONES, complied with the laws of the State of Florida. He did not and could not ignore this Court's rulings. In the malpractice action, CROSBY again relied upon this Court's opinion of the law to defend the action. The Second District, however, refused to do so by twice ruling contrary to the

law as established by this Court. While trying to couch its rejection of J.F.K. Medical Center and Batchelor, as simply a disputed issue of fact necessitating reversal of the summary judgment, the reality is a rejection of Florida's commitment to settlements and the well established law of not only this Court but other District Courts of Appeal. Therefore, discretionary review should be invoked.

ARGUMENT

A. The Second District's Decision in Jones v. Crosby, Expressly and Directly Conflicts with this Court's Decisions in J.F.K. Medical Center v. Price and Sun First National Bank v. Batchelor

The Florida Supreme Court has discretionary jurisdiction to review any decision of a district court which expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another district court or the Florida Supreme Court on the same question of law. Fla. Const. art. V., Section 3(b)(3); Ed Ricke & Sons, Inc. v. Green, 609 So. 2d 504 (Fla. 1992); Walsingham v. State, 602 So. 2d 1297 (Fla. 1992); Smith v. Jack Eckerd Corp., 577 So. 2d 1321 (Fla. 1991) (discussing standards for discretionary jurisdiction of a district court's decision conflicting with this Court's decisions). The Second District's decision directly conflicts with Sun First National Bank of Melbourne v. Batchelor, 321 So. 2d 73 (Fla. 1975), and J.F.K. Medical Center, Inc. v. Price, 647 So. 2d 833 (Fla. 1994).

In J.F.K. Medical Center this Court expressly held a voluntary dismissal of the active tortfeasor with prejudice is not the equivalent of an adjudication on the merits nor does it serve as a bar to continue the litigation against a passive or vicariously liable tortfeasor. (A. 4) In direct contrast to J.F.K. Medical Center's holding, the Second District in Jones II held it is potentially malpractice to settle with an actively negligent tortfeasor via a dismissal and release.

The trial court in the malpractice action granted summary judgment in favor of CROSBY stating that <u>J.F.K.</u> set forth the long-standing law of Florida regarding this issue. Nevertheless, the Second District, in what appears to be an effort to justify <u>Jones I</u>, states:

The effect of <u>J.F.K.</u> Medical Center, then was to crystallize what in reality was a conflict in the law of Florida rather than to state a rule of long-standing.

In view of the state of the law at the time CROSBY acted, it is the province of a jury to decide whether CROSBY's execution of the dismissal with prejudice, either deliberately or unintentionally, fell below the standard of care required of an attorney handling a lawsuit involving principles of vicarious liability.

(A. 2 at 4-5). The court went further to state that "a jury might decide that CROSBY should have been aware of the body of law that led to this court's decision in Jones I." (A. 2 at 5). Not only did the Second District fail to recognize that there was no law supporting Jones I, and in fact law against it—Batchelor, it also failed to recognize what the J.F.K. decision represented. In fact, in its July 17, 1996 Order, the Second District still argues "When Crosby executed the dismissal with prejudice, he foreclosed the Joneses' opportunity to recover from Gulf Coast Newspapers."

(A. 2 at 4) For that reason, the Second District's decision is in conflict with J.F.K.

In <u>J.F.K.</u>, this Court chose to review <u>Jones I</u> and <u>Price v. Beker</u>, 629 So. 2d 911 (Fla. 4th DCA 1993), due to the conflict between the two decisions. In approving the <u>Price</u> decision, this Court specifically found that <u>Jones I</u> was not only incorrect but created a conflict that did not exist prior to <u>Jones I</u>. In approving the <u>Price</u> decision, the Court relied upon the Restatement (2d) of Judgments § 51 (1982), § 768.041(1), Florida Statutes (1987), § 768.31(5)(a), Florida Statutes (1987), and <u>Sun First National Bank v. Batchelor</u>, 321 So. 2d 73 (Fla. 1975). The exact same law and rational CROSBY relied on in <u>Jones I</u>. This Court did not state that a new development in the law mandated that the <u>Price</u> decision be approved. Rather, in approving <u>Price</u>, this Court used well-established law to demonstrate that the <u>Jones I</u> decision was clearly in error. Nevertheless, the Second District justified its decision in this present controversy by suggesting that <u>J.F.K.</u> cleared up a huge conflict in the law of the State of Florida. Interestingly, though,

the Second District acknowledged that CROSBY's actions were "vindicated by <u>J.F.K.</u>." (A. 2 at 5)

Because this Court approved the decision in Price, it is important to look to that opinion for any insight as to the status of the law when CROSBY filed the Joint Motion of Dismissal. In Price, the Fourth District, like this Court, relied upon the Restatement (2d) of Judgments § 51, § 768.041(1), and § 768.31(5). Moreover, the Fourth District recognized that there was little case law on the subject except for Jones I. Therefore, the Fourth District recognized that there was not the great conflict in the law argued by the Second District in both Jones I and its recent Order. In fact, all of the case law that was on point with respect to the issues involved in this case supported CROSBY's actions. Sun First National Bank of Melbourne v. Batchelor, 321 So. 2d 73 (Fla. 1975); Ellis v. Weisbrot, 550 So. 2d 15 (Fla. 3d DCA 1989); Vasquez v. Board of Regents, State of Florida, 548 So. 2d 251 (Fla. 2d DCA 1989); Apstein v. Tower Investments of Miami, Inc., 544 So. 2d 1120 (Fla. 3d DCA 1989); Eason v. Lau, 369 So. 2d 600 (Fla. 1st DCA 1978), cert. denied, 368 So. 2d 1365 (Fla. 1979); Florida Tomato Packers. Inc. v. Wilson, 296 So. 2d 536 (Fla. 3d DCA 1974), cert. denied, 327 So. 2d 32 (Fla. 1976); Hertz Corp. v. Hellens, 140 So. 2d 73 (Fla. 2d DCA 1962). This just further demonstrates the reality that Jones I was an abhorrent case.

In its July 17, 1996 Order, the Second District concluded that a jury question was present as to the propriety of CROSBY dismissing Camus with prejudice although the suit continued against her employer. In finding that a jury question was present, the Second District expressly rejected this Court's decision in <u>J.F.K. Medical Center, Inc. v. Price</u>, 647 So. 2d 833 (Fla. 1994). Moreover, before ever reaching its July 17, 1996 decision, the Second District had previously

rejected this Court's decision in <u>Sun First National Bank of Melbourne v. Batchelor</u>, 321 So. 2d 73 (Fla. 1977), by ruling in <u>Jones I</u> that a dismissal with prejudice was an adjudication on the merits.² Therefore, the Second District has twice refused to follow the directives of this Court resulting in CROSBY seeking this Court's discretionary jurisdiction. If the Second District had followed this Court's directives the first time it heard this case, the discretionary review of this Court would not be necessary. Nevertheless, in two consecutive decisions, the Second District has refused to follow those directives.

Specifically, in <u>Jones I</u>, the Second District stated:

In <u>Sun First National Bank v. Batchelor</u>, 321 So. 2d 73 (Fla. 1975), the supreme court [sic.] held that [§ 768.041(1), Florida Statutes (1985)] abolished the common law rule that a release of one or more tortfeasors operates as discharge of all other tortfeasors who may be liable for the same torts.

Jones, 595 So. 2d at 91. The court further recognized the Third District held in Florida Tomato Packers. Inc. v. Wilson, 296 So. 2d 536 (Fla. 3d DCA 1974), cert. denied, 327 So. 2d 32 (Fla. 1976), that this rule applies even when an active tortfeasor is released. Nevertheless, the court refused to follow Batchelor and Florida Tomato Packers but chose rather to rely on a First District case, Walsingham v. Browning, 525 So. 2d 996 (Fla. 1st DCA 1988), an Eleventh Circuit case, Citibank, N.A. v. Data Lease Financial Corp, 904 F.2d 1498 (11th Cir. 1990), and Florida Rule of Civil Procedure 1.420. Despite the fact that neither Walsingham, Citibank nor Florida Rule of Civil Procedure 1.420 supports the Second District's decision, the Second District specifically chose not to follow Batchelor. Judge Patterson in his dissent recognized the error made by the

²By finding the dismissal to be an adjudication on the merits, the dismissal served to bar future action against the passive tortfeasor, Camus' employer.

majority. "The majority has chosen to put form over substance . . ." <u>Id</u>. at 92 (Patterson, J., dissenting). As a result of the Second District's incorrect decision, JONES filed a malpractice action against CROSBY. After CROSBY prevailed on summary judgment relying upon <u>Batchelor</u> and <u>J.F.K.</u>, JONES again appealed to the Second District resulting in the decision of which CROSBY seeks discretionary review.

B. Ironically, Because of the Second District's Refusal to Recognize the Holdings of this Court, an Innocent Advocate Will be Made to Pay for Following Those Same Rulings Rejected by the Second District

This Court should review this case because of the Second District's obvious disregard for the law as established by this Court. Any other conclusion would require a lawyer to essentially be clairvoyant. The Wisconsin Supreme Court said it best in <u>Denzer v. Rouse</u>, 180 N.W.2d 521 (Wisc. 1970), when it held:

A successfully asserted claim of legal malpractice needs more than the fact, standing alone, that a trial or appellate court interpreted a document differently than the lawyer or his client presumed they did. A lawyer would need a crystal ball, along with his library, to be able to guarantee that no judge, any time, anywhere, would disagree with his judgment or evaluation of the situation.

Id. at 525. SAMUEL CROSBY adhered to the law of the State of Florida, particularly this Court's decision in <u>Batchelor</u> and the Second District disagreed with him. Now, in what appears to be an effort to justify that decision which has been expressly and directly rejected by this Court and found in conflict, an even more aberrant situation has developed. If a lawyer can be liable for the whims of an appellate court, a lawyer will always be susceptible to a malpractice action although the law clearly supported his/her actions. CROSBY acknowledges lawyers may be liable for negligent conduct. Nevertheless, CROSBY cannot acknowledge that a lawyer can be liable for unsupported rulings of appellate courts.

In conclusion, the Second District refused to follow the directions of this Court in its first involvement in this case. Specifically, the Second District, while recognizing and understanding the holding of Batchelor, chose to disregard that holding and find that a dismissal with prejudice was an adjudication on the merits. Then, in its July 17, 1996 Order, the Second District, despite recognizing and acknowledging this Court's holding in <u>L.F.K.</u>, which only served to reiterate the Batchelor holding, refused to follow the Supreme Court's directive again. By doing so, the Second District's July 17, 1996 Order expressly and directly conflicts with <u>Sun First National Bank of Melbourne v. Batchelor</u>, 321 So. 2d 73 (Fla. 1975), and <u>J.F.K. Medical Center, Inc. v. Price</u>, 647 So. 2d 833 (Fla. 1994). Moreover, by doing so, the Second District subjected CROSBY to liability for something only the Second District could control.

CONCLUSION

Based upon all of the above, this Court has discretionary jurisdiction of this matter and should accept review.