#### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

#### SUPREME COURT CASE NO. 88,772

#### SECOND DISTRICT COURT CASE NO. 95-01785 CIRCUIT COURT CASE NO. GC-G 94-1653

SAMUEL G. CROSBY and MILLER, CROSBY & MILLER, P.A.,

Petitioners/Defendants,

VS.

PATRICIA JANE JONES and LOGAN M. JONES, JR., her husband,

Responder	nts/Plair	ntiffs.
-----------	-----------	---------

FILED
SEP 23 1996

CLERK SUPREMIA COURT

#### RESPONDENTS' JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF

On review from the District Court of Appeal Second District, State of Florida

HERBERT M. BERKOWITZ, P.A. Florida Bar No. 283347
BERKOWITZ, STANLEY & ASSOCIATES 4809 E. Busch Blvd., Ste 104
Tampa, FL 33617; 813/985-5999
ATTORNEY FOR
RESPONDENTS/PLAINTIFFS

### STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Respondents Mr. and Mrs. JONES (hereafter referred to as "JONES") would agree with the Statement of the Case as presented by Petitioner CROBSY, et. al. (hereafter referred to as "CROSBY"). JONES would note additional critical documents are attached to this Answer Brief pursuant to Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.220 as an appendix and are designated as (App. \_\_\_)

#### STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

JONES accepts CROSBY's Statement of the Facts as to the description of the proceedings in the original case, with the following additions:

In the original case, after Gulf Coast moved for Summary Judgment arguing the dismissal with prejudice of Camus served as a dismissal with prejudice as to them as her employer, the vicarious tortfeasor, several other significant events occurred which are contained in the record. CROSBY filed a Joint Stipulation which sought to set aside the dismissal with prejudice, and which was signed by him and Camus' counsel, (but not Gulf Coast's counsel) claiming that the dismissal with prejudice had been entered by mistake. (App. 1) CROSBY then presented it to the trial judge ex parte and obtained an Order vacating the original dismissal with prejudice. (App. 2) Upon learning that Gulf Coast's counsel had not been advised of the Stipulation, the court sua sponte vacated its Order vacating the dismissal. (App. 3) The trial court, after hearing all parties, issued the Order granting Gulf Coast's Motion For Summary Judgment. (App. 4)

JONES also accepts CROSBY's Statement of the Facts as to the progress of the legal malpractice case filed on July 18, 1994, with the following addition:

After suit was filed and an extension of time to respond was afforded CROSBY, CROSBY filed a Motion To Dismiss. Before that motion could be heard, <u>JFK Medical Center Inc. v. Price</u>, 647 So. 2d 833 (Fla. 1994) was reported, which gave rise to CROSBY's Motion For Summary Judgment. JONES filed the affidavit of A. Woodson Isom, Jr., an expert in the area of tort litigation. (App. 5) No answer to the complaint has ever been filed, nor was any opposing affidavits filed by CROSBY.

The granting of Summary Judgment was appealed, and the Second District Court of Appeal reversed and remanded the case for determination by jury, <u>Jones v. Crosby et. al.</u>, 21 Fla. L. W. D1666 (7/17/96). Nothing in its decision is in conflict with any decisions of this court, and granting of discretionary jurisdiction should be denied.

#### **SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT**

There is no express or direct conflict between the Second District Court of Appeal's ruling below and either <u>JFK Medical Center Inc. v. Price</u>, 647 So. 2d 833 (Fla. 1994) or <u>Sun First National Bank of Melbourne v. Batchelor</u>, 321 So. 2d 73 (Fla. 1975), and therefore, invocation of discretionary jurisdiction of the Supreme Court would be inappropriate.

Discretionary jurisdiction is narrow in its application and is available only when there is a decision which expressly and directly conflicts with the decision of either another District Court of the Supreme Court on the same question of law. For there to be a "direct conflict" sufficient to invoke discretionary jurisdiction, the conflict needs to concern the other court's decision as precedent, as opposed to simply being an adjudication of the rights of particular litigants. It is not enough to invoke this type of review simply to arrive at different results.

The decision being challenged is not in direct conflict with <u>JFK Medical Center</u>. The Second District reviewed and examined the record in light of <u>JFK Medical Center</u> and determined that a jury question existed in order to determine whether CROSBY's conduct (some 4 years before the rendition of <u>JFK Medical Center</u>) constituted negligence when viewed in the context of the state of the law at the time CROSBY acted.

No conflict exists between the Supreme Court's opinion in <u>Sun First National Bank</u> of <u>Melbourne v. Batchelor</u> and the Order under discussion and discretionary jurisdiction for review should not attach. <u>Sun First</u> is a case dealing with the effect of a <u>release</u> on other tortfeasors. <u>Jones</u> dealt with the effect of a dismissal of prejudice on other tortfeasors - a question of law quite different from that addressed in <u>Sun First</u>. Additionally, the Second District Court of Appeal in <u>Jones v. Gulf Coast Newspapers Inc.</u>, 595 So. 2d 90 (Fla. 2d

DCA) rev. denied 602 So. 2d 942 (Fla. 1992) (hereafter referred to as "Jones I") addressed, acknowledged and distinguished Sun First from the facts before it. The Jones I court noted that CROSBY had signed a release indicating an intent to limit the settlement to just one tortfeasor, but failed to stop there, and proceeded to enter a dismissal with prejudice in addition. It was this additional act which caused the problem, and not anything dealing with a release. Sun First discussed releases under Florida Statute § 768.041(1) and does not discuss dismissals, either with or without prejudice.

Finally, CROSBY is not an innocent victim of the Second District Court of Appeal's "whims" and should not be immunized from his own negligence simply because fortuitously this court, more than 4 years later, in a different case, was called upon to resolve a conflict between District Court of Appeals and did so in a manner which would have saved Mrs. JONES' cause of action from dismissal, notwithstanding CROSBY's negligence.

#### **ARGUMENT**

1. The decision rendered by the Second District Court of Appeal on July 17, 1996 does not expressly or directly conflict with the decisions of the Florida Supreme Court in JFK Medical Center Inc. v. Price, 647 So. 2d 833 (Fla. 1994), or Sun First National Bank of Melbourne v. Batchelor, 321 So. 2d 73 (Fla. 1975), and therefore, it is inappropriate to invoke the discretionary jurisdiction of the Supreme Court pursuant to Article V, Section 3 (B)(3), Constitution of the State of Florida, or Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.030 (a)(2)(A)(iv).

Petitioner seeks to invoke the discretionary jurisdiction of this Court in accordance with Article V, Section 3 (B)(3) of the Constitution of the State of Florida. That provision specifically states that:

The Supreme Court may review any decision of a District Court of Appeal...that expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another District Court of Appeal or of the Supreme Court on the same question of law.

Similarly, Rule 9.030 (a)(2)(A)(iv) of the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure states that:

the discretionary jurisdiction of the Supreme Court may be sought to review (a) decisions of District Courts of Appeal that...(iv) expressly and directly conflict with the decision of another District Court of Appeal or of the Supreme Court on the same question of law;....

It is not the purpose of discretionary review to reconsider decisions of the District Court of Appeal, nor is discretionary review designed to allow a losing party an additional theater of review. Indeed, such review is narrow in its application, and is available only when there is a decision that expressly and directly conflicts with the decision of another District Court or of the Supreme Court on the same question of law. The exercise of such discretionary review is narrowly drawn and the conflict between decisions must be direct, Mystan Marine, Inc. v. Harrington, 339 So. 2d 200 (Fla. 1976). It must also be obvious and

patently reflected in the decisions relied on, and it must result from an application of law to facts which are on all fours, regardless of the quantum and character of proof. <u>Trustees of Internal Improvement Fund v. Lobean</u>, 127 So. 2d 98, 100-101 (Fla. 1961); <u>Florida Power & Light Co. v. Bell</u>, 113 So. 2d 697 (Fla. 1959). See, too <u>Department of Health and Rehabilitative Services v. National Adoption Counseling Service, Inc.</u>, 498 So. 2d 888 (Fla. 1986); and <u>Reaves v. State</u>, 485 So. 2d 829 (Fla. 1986).

In Ansin v. Thurston, 101 So. 2d 808 (Fla. 1958), the court, in referring to the phrase, "direct conflict", stated that for there to be sufficient grounds to invoke discretionary jurisdiction, a direct conflict had to concern the other court's decisions as precedents, as opposed to simply being an adjudication of the rights of particular litigants. The conflict referred to both in the Constitution and the Rules of Appellate Procedure, require there to be a direct conflict in decisions, not simply whether different results would occur, or whether there are conflicts of reasons or opinions in order to satisfy the basis for jurisdiction by certiorari. See Mancini v. State, 312 So. 2d 732 (Fla. 1975); Kincaid v. World Insurance Co., 157 So. 2d 517 (Fla. 1963); Weston v. Nathanson, 173 So. 2d 451 (Fla. 1964); Gibson v. Maloney, 231 So. 2d 823 (Fla. 1970); and Dodi Publishing Co. v. Editorial America, S.A., 385 So. 2d 1369 (Fla. 1980).

#### A. NO DIRECT CONFLICT EXISTS AS TO JFK MEDICAL CENTER

The decision rendered below is not in conflict with either case cited by the Petitioner and consequently, is not a decision appropriate for discretionary review as requested herein by the Petitioner. Indeed, <u>Jones v. Crosby et. al.</u>, 21 Fla. L. W. D1666 (7/17/96) clearly demonstrates that the Second District Court of Appeal was very mindful of the Supreme

Court's opinion in <u>JFK Medical Center</u> and reviewed the record underlying this case in the context of that opinion. The Second District Court of Appeal decided that the trial judge's granting of the Motion for Summary Judgment was inappropriate because, when viewed in the context of the state of the law at the time CROSBY acted, it was clearly a jury question as to whether the Petitioner CROSBY's conduct surrounding his executing the Dismissal With Prejudice fell below the standard of care required of an attorney handling a lawsuit involving principles of vicarious liability. The Second District Court of Appeal recognized that the Supreme Court had resolved what had become a conflict in the law, rather than expressing a rule of long standing. Indeed, it should be noted that CROSBY's alleged misconduct occurred years before the Fourth District Court of Appeal entered its opinion in <u>Price v. Beker</u>, 629 So. 2d 911 (Fla. App. 4DCA 1993), which was the Fourth District opinion certifying conflict to the Supreme Court, ultimately resulting in the <u>JFK Medical Center</u> opinion.

Notwithstanding the Petitioner's suggestions that the Second District Court of Appeal somehow purposely sought to ignore the Supreme Court's opinion in <u>JFK Medical Center</u>, the Second District Court of Appeal acknowledged that <u>JFK Medical Center</u> resolved a conflict between districts, but under the facts in this case, whether CROSBY exercised reasonable judgment when he entered into the Dismissal With Prejudice was, after all, a jury question. See <u>Department of Revenue v. Johnston</u>, 442 So. 2d 950 (Fla. 1983).

In fact, there is absolutely nothing in the decision now under challenge that is in direct conflict with the <u>JFK Medical Center</u> opinion. As noted, discretionary jurisdiction does not attach where, <u>arguendo</u>, there may be a conflict of result as to the adjudication of

the rights of the particular litigants, <u>Ansin v. Thurston</u>, 101 So. 2d 808 (Fla. 1958), or where there may be a conflict in the underlying reasons or opinions as opposed to the decision itself. <u>Gibson v. Maloney</u>, 231 So. 2d 823 (Fla. 1970). <u>JFK Medical Center resolved a conflict between districts prospectively</u>; the instant decision remands the case for a jury determination of the nature of this Defendant's conduct.

# B. NO DIRECT CONFLICT EXISTS WITH SUN FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF MELBOURNE V. BATCHELOR

Petitioner's claim of conflict with the Supreme Court's opinion of Sun First National Bank of Melbourne v. Batchelor, 321 So. 2d 73 (Fla. 1975) is clearly inappropriate. Sun First is a case that discusses the effect of Florida Statute § 768.041(1) and deals with the effect of a release of one tortfeasor on all other tortfeasors who may be liable for the same tort. Jones I does not deal with the effects of a release, but rather deals with the effect of a Dismissal With Prejudice on vicarious tortfeasors. Indeed, the Second District Court of Appeal in Jones I points out that if CROSBY had executed only a release against one of the tortfeasors with appropriate restrictive language, he would have avoided all of the litigation that followed. Jones I came about because CROSBY had gone further than that contemplated by this Statute and further than that decided in Sun First, when he entered into a Dismissal With Prejudice. Indeed, at page 91 in Jones I, the Second District Court of Appeal makes reference to Sun First, acknowledges its decision and goes on to point out that,

if we were considering only the release involved in this matter, or if the action had been dismissed without prejudice, we would agree with the appellants' position and reverse the Summary Judgment entered against them.

In this case, however, in addition to the release, the Court at the request of the parties entered an Order dismissing the appellants' claim against Mrs. Camus, the active tortfeasor, with prejudice.

Simply stated, there is no conflict between the decision of the Second District Court of Appeal in its opinion of July 17, 1996 and the Supreme Court in its decision in <u>Sun First</u> because the latter deals with releases and the former deals with dismissals. There is neither an express nor direct conflict with the Supreme Court's decision, nor do these cases even involve the same questions of law.

#### **ARGUMENT**

2. <u>Discretionary review of the Second District Court of Appeal's Order of July 17, 1996 should not be granted in order to immunize negligent acts of an attorney simply because subsequent unrelated events have coincidentally occurred.</u>

Petitioner argues that somehow this Court should take discretionary jurisdiction of the Second District Court of Appeal's opinion so it could immunize the alleged negligence of the Petitioner/Attorney and free him from answering for his conduct, simply because at a time distant in the future to the conduct in question, the Supreme Court addressed the issue and ruled in a manner that would have rendered his negligence harmless. It is the height of sophistry however, for this Petitioner to claim status as an "innocent advocate" when he was patently disingenuous with the original trial court (see App. 1-3) and which conduct resulted in the loss of his own client's cause of action.

The law cannot and does not require omniscience from its practitioners. On the other hand, it must require its practitioners to operate at the relevant minimum standard of care required of an attorney handling a lawsuit for his client. Petitioner, in essence, argues

for this Court to create blanket immunity for any acts of omission or commission by an attorney which some day might find itself enacted into law. While it is gracious of Mr. CROSBY to acknowledge that lawyers may be liable for negligent conduct, it is self serving and circular for him to argue "if a lawyer can be liable for the whims of an appellate court, a lawyer will always be susceptible to a malpractice action, although the law clearly supported his/her actions." (Petitioners Jurisdictional Brief, page 9)

PATRICIA JANE JONES did not cause the accident that occurred in 1986. PATRICIA JANE JONES was seriously injured as a result of that accident and hired CROSBY to represent her interests therein. PATRICIA JANE JONES was not consulted regarding the entry of the Stipulation for Dismissal With Prejudice, nor did she even have the foggiest notion as to what such stipulation meant. She reasonably relied on her lawyer, CROSBY, to act on her behalf, in her best interest, and to represent her in a non-negligent fashion. Because of CROSBY's alleged failure to conduct himself with the minimum standard of care required of an attorney handling a lawsuit involving principles of vicarious liability, Mrs. JONES was deprived of her cause of action against the vicarious tortfeasor and to date, has been left without an opportunity to adequately compensate her for the losses resulting from the accident in question. As Judge Patterson pointed out in his dissent in Jones I, "we should not permit the appellants (JONES) to be trapped into forfeiting their cause of action against Gulf Coast by the procedural method chosen by the lawyers involved", 595 So. 2d at 92.

JONES sued CROSBY for legal malpractice because his conduct cost her a substantial cause of action. No one is more sorry than Mrs. JONES that <u>JFK Medical</u>

Center was not decided prior to June 13, 1990. If it had been, then CROSBY's negligence would not have caused her harm. Unfortunately for her, the status of the law was otherwise when CROSBY's actions occurred and it was to be more than 4 years later before the Supreme Court addressed the conflict in the law of Florida, a conflict which arose after CROSBY's conduct occurred. It is PATRICIA JANE JONES who is the innocent victim of the alleged negligence of her counsel, CROSBY, and not the innocent victim of "the whims of an appellate court" or the "unsupported rulings of appellate courts", as Petitioner states at page 9 of his Jurisdictional Brief. The Order of July 17, 1996 remands this matter to the trial court so that a jury can determine whether the conduct complained of in the complaint constitutes legal malpractice and ultimately justifies an award for damages in her favor and against her former counsel.

#### **CONCLUSION**

Based on the above, the Order of July 17, 1996 neither expressly nor directly conflicts with the decisions of the Florida Supreme Court in <u>JFK Medical Center</u> or <u>Sun First</u>, and therefore, Petitioner's request to invoke this court's discretionary jurisdiction to review said Order should be denied.